
 

 
Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact: Director of Community Planning and Development 
Timothy R. Schmitt, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864 or 517.853.4506 - Ten Day Notice is Required.  
Meeting Location: 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864 
 
 

AGENDA 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN  

PLANNING COMMISSION – REGULAR MEETING 
February 23, 2026 6:30 PM 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

2. ROLL CALL 

3. PUBLIC REMARKS 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
A. February 9, 2026 

 
6. COMMUNICATIONS 

A. None 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
A. REZ #26004 – Capstone 

 
8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A. None 
 

9. OTHER BUSINESS 
A. None 

 
10. REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 

A. Township Board update 
B. Liaison reports 

 
11. PROJECT UPDATES 

12. PUBLIC REMARKS 

13. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 

14. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



AGENDA page 2 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN  
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

February 23, 2026 6:30 PM 

 
Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact: Director of Community Planning and Development 
Timothy R. Schmitt, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864 or 517.853.4506 - Ten Day Notice is Required.  
Meeting Location: 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864 
 
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

TENTATIVE PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 
March 9, 2026 

  
1. PUBLIC HEARINGS  

A. REZ #26006 – Tekchandani 
 

2. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
A. REZ #26004 – Capstone 
 

3. OTHER BUSINESS 
A. None 



Page 1 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
REGULAR MEETING PLANNING COMMISSION  
5000 Okemos Road, Okemos MI 48864-1198 
517.853.4000, Township Townhall Room 
Monday, February 9, 2026, 6:30 pm 
 
PRESENT: Vice-Chair McCurtis, Commissioners Shrewsbury, Snyder, Brooks, McConnell, and 

Nahum 

ABSENT: Chair Romback 

STAFF: Principal Planner Shorkey 

 
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

 
Vice-Chair McCurtis called the January 26, 2026, regular meeting for the Meridian Township 
Planning Commission to order at 6:30 pm.  
 

2. ROLL CALL 
 
Vice-Chair McCurtis called the roll of the Board. All Board members were present except for 
Chair Romback.  
 

3. PUBLIC REMARKS 
None 

 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
Vice-Chair McCurtis asked for approval of the agenda.  
 
Commissioner Snyder moved to approve the February 9, 2026, Regular Planning 
Commission meeting agenda. Seconded by Commissioner Nahum. Motion passed 
unanimously. 
 

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Commissioner Shrewsbury moved to approve Minutes of the January 26, 2026 meeting 
as amended. Seconded by Commissioner Brooks. Motion passed unanimously. 
 

6. COMMUNICATIONS 
 
No additional communications. 
 

 
7. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
A. None 

 
8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  

 



Page 2 

A. None 
 

9. OTHER BUSINESS 
 
A. Parking Ordinance Discussion 

 
Principal Planner Shorkey introduced the draft parking ordinance update and summarized the 
memo.  
 
Commissioner Brooks asked Principal Planner Shorkey to describe the changes in the 
ordinance since the last meeting. Principal Planner Shorkey described the most recent changes 
and updates.  
 
Commissioner Brooks asked if the examples made staff alter any of the proposed changes. 
Principal Planner Shorkey said that the sticking point was the 20% number.  Principal Planner 
Shorkey said that Staff was comfortable with the ordinance otherwise. Commissioner Brooks 
asked if the 20% number would fit. Principal Planner Shorkey said that it would in some cases 
but in some cases, it would create nonconformities. 
 
Commissioner McConnell asked about parking in a redevelopment. Principal Planner Shorkey 
discussed and noted that increasing a nonconformance would require a variance. Vice-Chair 
McCurtis asked how parking could expand if it is landlocked. Commissioner Shrewsbury 
discussed the ordinance and suggested finding a way to allow for flexibility in the ordinance 
and for common sense to prevail on a site-specific basis. After discussion, Principal Planner 
Shorkey said that Staff could discuss and discussed some possible solutions. 
 
Commissioner Brooks discussed the ordinance in light of the Master Plan and said that setting 
the parking maximum would give a policy mechanism for allowing too much parking lot. 
Commissioner Brooks said that 20% seems reasonable and discussed other communities’ 
parking ordinances and the elimination of parking minimums. Principal Planner Shorkey said 
the parking lot maximum language could go the other way and only apply to certain land uses 
and suggested updated the parking requirements in that case.   
 
Vice-Chair McCurtis asked what the next step is and asked if it reasonable for Staff to determine 
what the maximum number should be. Principal Planner Shorkey suggested writing up various 
potential paragraphs for the parking maximum language and scheduling a public hearing for 
the ordinance. After discussion, Principal Planner Shorkey said that he would schedule the 
public hearing for the March 23rd meeting and present the parking maximum options. 
 

B. Chicken Ordinance Update 
 
Principal Planner Shorkey introduced the draft chicken ordinance update and pointed out the 
changes in the ordinance since the last meeting.  
 
Commissioner Shrewsbury pointed out a typo in the section numbering. Commissioner Brooks 
asked about the number of allowed chickens and rabbits in the ordinance. Commissioner 
Shrewsbury asked Staff to make sure that the ordinance update is in the right place. Principal 
Planner Shorkey showed where the ordinance is being updated and pointed out the stacking 
nature of the zoning ordinance. 
 
Vice-Chair McCurtis asked what the next step is. Principal Planner Shorkey said that he would 
schedule a public hearing for the ordinance for the March 23rd meeting.  
 



Page 3 

 
10. REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 
a. Township Board Update 

 
Principal Planner Shorkey had no report. Commissioner McConnell reminded the Planning 
Commission about the upcoming Joint Board and Commission meeting. Commissioner Nahum 
asked the Commissioners to let him know if there was anything they wanted him to bring up to 
the Board. 

 
b. Liaison Reports 

 
None 

 
11. PROJECT UPDATES 

 
Principal Planner Shorkey had no report. 

 
12. PUBLIC REMARKS 

 
None 
 

13. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 
 

Commissioner Brooks discussed parking regulations in other communities and discussed the 
idea of eliminating parking minimums. 
 

14. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Vice-Chair McCurtis called for a motion to adjourn the meeting. 
 
Commissioner Brooks moved to adjourn the February 9, 2026 regular meeting of the 
Planning Commission. Seconded by Commissioner Nahum. Motion passed unanimously 
at 7:13. 



 

 

To:  Planning Commission  
 
From:  Brian Shorkey, Principal Planner 
 
Date:  February 23, 2026 
 
Re: Rezoning #26004 – Capstone, Rezone approximately 69 acres located at the 

east end of Hannah Boulevard from PO, Professional Office and RAA, One 
Family-Low Density Residential, to RD, Multiple Family, up to 8 dwelling units 
per acre, subject to a Conditional Rezoning Agreement. 

 
 
Capstone Collegiate Communities, the Applicant, has requested the rezoning of two properties of 
approximately 69 acres in size (Subject Property) located at the eastern end of Hannah Boulevard 
from PO, Professional Office and RAA, One Family – Low Density Residential, to RD, Multiple Family, 
up to a maximum 8 dwelling units per acre, subject to a conditional rezoning agreement. The Subject 
Property is the last phase of the overall Planned Unit Development (PUD) known as Hannah Farms. 
If approved, the rezoning will be followed by a new PUD request for the Subject Property.  
 
The Applicant is proposing to develop a series of multi-story buildings, duplexes, and single-family 
style buildings on the Subject Property. The majority of the buildings are proposed on the larger of 
the two parcels, the northern one, and would access Hannah Parkway. The final building is proposed 
on the smaller parcel to the south and would access Eyde Parkway. The rezoning is subject to the 
following conditions, proposed by the Applicant: 
 

• PUD to be submitted in a specific timeframe 
• Limits the number of units to no more than 270 units 
• Approximately 38 acres of open space (wetlands/floodplain included) 
• Natural Buffer Zone of 248’ (no development zone) adjacent to the Indian Hills 

Neighborhood 
 
Future Land Use 



 
Rezoning #26004 – (Capstone) 
Planning Commission (February 23, 2026) 
Page 2 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

 

As noted, the Subject Property consists of 
two parcels. The smaller parcel, fronting on 
Eyde Parkway, is shown as Mixed Use on the 
Future Land Use Map. These are areas 
envisioned for mixed uses containing 
engaging and walkable streetscapes with 
varied activities, including multiple 
residential housing. The Mixed Use 
designation supports the requested RD 
zoning in conjunction with the proposed 
PUD followup. 
 
The second, larger parcel is shown as 
Suburban Residential on the Future Land 
Use Map. This is the most prevalent 
residential category in the Township and is 
characterized by planned aesthetics, 
proximity to retail and cultural centers. The 
Suburban Residential designation correlates 
with the RAAA, RAA, and RA zoning 
designations. 
 
Zoning 
The first parcel in the Subject Property, 
fronting on Eyde Parkey, is split zoned 
between PO (Professional Office) on the 
west side and RAA (Single-Family 
Residential) on the east side.  
 
The requested RD zoning district 
requires a minimum of 100 feet of lot 
width, 11,000 square feet of lot area for 
duplexes, and no minimum lot area for 
multiple family. This parcel in the 
Subject Property complies with the RD 
dimensional requirements.  
 
The second, larger, parcel is zoned RAA 
(Single-Family Residential). It too 
complies with the dimensional 
regulations for the requested RD zoning. 
 
As previously noted, if approved, the 
rezoning will be followed by a Planned 
Unit Development (PUD) amendment. The PUD would allow flexibility in the dimensional regulations 
for the Subject Property.  

 

2023 FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
 

 

ZONING MAP 
 



 
Rezoning #26004 – (Capstone) 
Planning Commission (February 23, 2026) 
Page 3 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

 

 
Physical Features 
As shown on the attached proposed site plan, the Subject Property is undeveloped and consists of 
natural vegetation. The Township online GIS shows the presence of wetlands on the southeast and 
northeast corners of the Subject Property. These wetlands coincide with floodways associated with 
the Red Cedar River and the associated wetlands. The site plan that was submitted with the 
application indicates that the Applicant has taken the wetlands and floodways into account. 
 
According to the Greenway Plan, the wetlands/floodways coincide with Priority Conservation 
Corridors. As noted, the proposed site plan shows that these areas are being preserved. 
 
Streets & Traffic 
The Subject Property is accessed from Hannah Boulevard Eyde Parkway. Both of these roads are  
two-lane local roads with curb and gutter. A 7-foot pedestrian pathway is located along both of those 
roads. 
 
An updated traffic impact analysis was submitted with this updated application, prepared by 
Progressive Companies and dated January 2026. The assessment used data from the Institute of 
Transportation Engineers (ITE) Trip Generation Manual edition to estimate trip generation rates 
for the proposed development. The analysis concluded that no further infrastructure improvements 
a recommended, although the study also suggests that signal timing adjustments may need to be 
made to ensure that queues do not exceed the storage capacity.  
 
A traffic impact study is required for developments that are expected to generate more than 250 
additional directional trips during the peak hour.  The traffic assessment estimated that the 
development will generate approximately 110 weekday morning peek hour vehicle trips and 
approximately 131 afternoon peak hour vehicle trips. The following table summarizes findings from 
the submitted traffic assessment. 
 
Based on the findings of the attached traffic analysis, the traffic expected to be generated by the 
proposed rezoning does not require a full traffic impact study. Note that the traffic assessment will 
have to have to be reviewed and accepted by the ICRD during Site Plan review. 
 
Although there is a stub street from the Indian Lakes Estates neighborhood going from Mohican into 
the Subject Property, it is clear from previous development proposals that connecting into the 
Neighborhood was a strongly undesired outcome. As such, the development proposed secondary 
access through existing development to the west and functionally seals off the stub street through 
long term preservation of the land where the stub runs into.  
 
Utilities 
Municipal water and sanitary sewer are available to serve the subject site.  Sewer and water run 
along Hannah Boulevard and Eyde Parkway and serve the existing development in Hannah Farms. 
The location and capacity of utilities for any proposed development will be reviewed in detail by the 
Department of Public Works and Engineering during Site Plan review. 
 



 
Rezoning #26004 – (Capstone) 
Planning Commission (February 23, 2026) 
Page 4 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

 

The Hannah Farm Drain runs along the front of the property. There is also a branch of the Hannah 
Farm Drain that runs through the southern part of the Subject Property.  
 
Staff Analysis 
The applicant has requested the conditional rezoning of an approximately 69-acre parcel on Hannah 
Parkway from PO and RAA to RD. When evaluating a rezoning request, the Planning Commission 
should consider all uses permitted by right and by special use permit in the current and proposed 
zoning districts, as well as the reasons for rezoning listed on page two of the rezoning application 
(attached). Based on this, Planning Staff has the following comments: 
 

1. The current request is to rezone the Subject Property to RD, which allows multiple-family 
developments up to eight units per acre. Several conditions of approval have been proposed 
by the Applicant in conjunction with this application, including the following: 

a. PUD to be submitted in a specific timeframe 
b. Limits the number of units to no more than 270 units  
c. Approximately 40 acres of open space (wetlands/floodplain included) 
d. Natural Buffer Zone of 248’ (no development zone) to the Indian Lakes Estates 

Neighborhood 

2. The attached site plan shows a series of buildings on the Subject Property. The setbacks appear 
to comply with and/or exceed the zoning requirements within the RD zoning district. If the 
rezoning to RD as proposed is approved, the next step will require an amended Planned Unit 
Development, followed by site plan approval.  

3. The proposed multiple-family development is more intense than anticipated by the Future 
Land Use map. However, the proposed development does comply with the goal of promoting 
infill development withing the Urban Service Boundary and increasing housing diversity in the 
Township. In addition, the proposed development can be seen as completing the broader  
mixed-use development, known as Hannah Farms, which complies with the Master Plan’s goal 
of encouraging mixed-use development. 

4. The proposed 270 dwelling units under the conditional rezoning is well below the 
approximately 440 units permitted under the RD zoning.  

 
Planning Commission Options 
The Planning Commission may recommend approval or denial of the request, or it may recommend a 
different zoning designation than proposed by the applicant to the Township Board. A resolution will 
be provided at a future meeting. 
 
Attachments 
1. Rezoning application and attached materials, dated December 12, 2025 and received by the 

Township on January 27, 2026. 
2. Site plan, prepared by Nequette Architecture and Design, Inc., and received by the Township on 

January 27, 2026. 
3. Traffic Impact Analysis, prepared by Progressive Companies, received by the Township on January 

27, 2026. 
4. Rezoning criteria. 























































 

 
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

 
 
 
To:  Members of Planning Commission 
 
From:  Brian Shorkey, AICP, Principal Planner 
 
Date:  February 23, 2026 
 
Re: Project Report 
 
As of February, 2026, the following projects are under construction, under site plan review, or have been submitted as a new 
application (Changes since the last report are shown in bold): 
 
Under Construction 

Name   Location  Date Approved  Description  Status 
1. Newton Pointe  6276 Newton Road February 24, 2022 Mixed Use w/  Phase 2 

105 MFR & 14 SFR Under construction 

2. Silverleaf Phase 1 West Bennett Road June 26, 2024  25 SFR   Under construction 

3. Mr. Car Wash  4880 Marsh Road April 28 2025  New Car Wash  Demo Begun 

4. Haslett Village   SW Haslett/Marsh July 27, 2022  Site Plan Phase 1 Under construction 

Under Site Plan Review 
Name   Location  Date Approved  Description  Status 

1. Fedewa Holdings Dobie Road  November 6, 2025 MFR Development Site Plan Review 

 
New Applications 

Name   Location  Description    Status 
1. Okemos Coffee  Hamilton Road  New Business    Under building review 

2. Hulett Road Estates 3560 Hulett Road 6-unit PUD    PUD approved, waiting for Site Plan 

3. Terra Ferma   2655 W. Grand River New Climbing Gym   Under building review 

4. El Camino’s Garage Bar 4790 Hagadorn Road New Bar/Restaurant   Under Construction 



 
Page 2 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

 

5. Flaky Croissant  Hagadorn Road  New Bakery/Coffee Shop  Under Building Review 

6. Box Lunch  1982 W. Grand River New Retail    Under Building Review   




